

Meridium APM Lubrication Management

3.6.1.0.0



Meridium APM Lubrication Management

3.6.1.0.0

Copyright © Meridium, Inc. 2016

All rights reserved. Printed in the U.S.A.

This software/documentation contains proprietary information of Meridium, Inc.; it is provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure. All rights including reproduction by photographic or electronic process and translation into other languages of this material are fully reserved under copyright laws. Reproduction or use of this material in whole or in part in any manner without written permission from Meridium, Inc. is strictly prohibited.

Meridium is a registered trademark of Meridium, Inc.

All trade names referenced are the service mark, trademark or registered trademark of the respective manufacturer.

About This Document

This file is provided so that you can easily print this section of the Meridium APM Help system.

You should, however, use the Help system instead of a printed document. This is because the Help system provides hyperlinks that will assist you in easily locating the related instructions that you need. Such links are not available in a print document format.

The Meridium APM Help system can be accessed within Meridium APM itself or via the Meridium APM Documentation Website (<u>https://www.me</u>-ridium.com/documentation/WebHelp/WebHelpMaster.htm).

Note: If you do not have access to the Meridium APM Documentation Website, contact <u>Meridium Global Support Services</u>.

Table of Contents

Meridium APM Operator Rounds	1
Copyright and Legal	2
About This Document	3
Table of Contents	4
About the Lubrication Management Documentation	7
Overview of Lubrication Management	8
Lubrication Management System Requirements	9
About Routes and Lubrication Requirements	10
Lubrication Management Data Model	12
Accessing the Lubrication Management Start Page	13
Aspects of the Lubrication Management Start Page	14
First-Time Deployment Workflow	15
Upgrade or Update Lubrication Management to 3.6.1.0.0	17
Lubrication Management Security	18
Configuring the Has Checkpoint Relationship	20
Configuring the Has Recommendations Relationship	21
Why Do I Need to Modify Family Code Items?	22
Modifying the Lubrication Requirement Family Code Item	23
Modifying the Has Checkpoint Family Code Item	25
Modifying the Lubrication Management Recommendation Family Code Item	27
Modifying the Has Recommendation Family Code Item	29
Managing Lubrication Requirement Template Mappings	31
About the LM Explorer	32
Lubrication Management Associated Pages	33
Accessing the Lubrication Management Route Management Page	34
Aspects of the Lubrication Management Route Management Page	35
Route Tasks Menu	36
Common Tasks Menu	37

About Creating Route Records	.38
Creating a Route Record from the Lubrication Management Start Page	.39
Modifying an Existing Route Record	.41
Accessing the List of Recently Modified Route Records	.42
Aspects of the Lubrication Management Recently Modified Routes Page	.43
Common Tasks Menu	.44
About Configuring Lubricants that are Associated with a Checkpoint	. 45
Accessing the Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants Page	.46
Aspects of the Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants Page	.47
Common Tasks Menu	.48
Lubricants and the Lubrication Requirement Datasheet: An Example	.49
Filtering Lubricant Records	.51
About Creating Lubricant Records	. 53
Creating the First Lubricant Record	.54
Creating Subsequent Lubricant Records	.55
Options for Creating Lubrication Requirement Records	.56
Accessing the Lubrication Management Template Management Page	. 57
Aspects of the Lubrication Management Template Management Page	.58
Template Tasks Menu	.59
Common Tasks Menu	.60
Creating a Lubrication Requirement Template Record	.61
Creating a Lubrication Requirement Record from Scratch	. 63
Creating a Lubrication Requirement Record from a Template	.65
About Defining a Schedule for Lubrication Requirements	. 68
Accessing the Scheduling Feature	.69
About the Schedule Window	.70
About Applying a Sequence Value to Lubrication Requirement Records	.72
Applying a Sequence Value to Lubrication Requirement Records	.73
About Reference Documents and Lubrication Requirements	.75
Linking New Reference Document Records to Lubrication Requirement Records	.76

Accessing the Lubrication Management Reports Page
Aspects of the Lubrication Management Reports Page81
Common Tasks Menu82
Opening Reports from the Lubrication Management Report Page83
About the Lubrication Management Folder Structure
Explorers Folder
Queries Folder
Reports Folder
Lubrication Requirement
Lubrication Requirement Template
System Code Tables Used by Lubrication Management
Lubrication Management URLs

About the Lubrication Management Documentation

A complete Lubrication Management implementation involves performing the following tasks:

- Installing and configuring the product. This documentation assumes that all the necessary components have been installed and properly configured.
- Performing administrative tasks in the Data Configuration Manager . This documentation assumes that all necessary configuration steps have been completed in the Configuration Manager.
- Configuring and analyzing Lubrication Management records in the Meridium APM Framework application.

This documentation explains how to configure and analyze Lubrication Management records in the Meridium APM Framework application. This documentation does not, however, assume any specific audience. It simply explains what a user would need to know to configure Lubrication Management in the Meridium APM Framework application. We assume that you know which tasks you are responsible for and can find the documentation associated with those tasks using the Table of Contents or the Search feature of the Help system.

Overview of Lubrication Management

The *Meridium APM Lubrication Management* module lets you create Route records and link them to Lubrication Requirement records, which store information about the checkpoints at which someone will need to record reading values.

After the Route records and Lubrication Requirement records have been created, you can print the Lubrication Management Data Capture report and record reading values for each checkpoint along the Route. For example, if a Route record is linked to three Lubrication Requirement records, you would need to perform each check and use the report printout or the Meridium APM Framework application to record those reading values. You can also create Recommendation records based on your findings.

After the desired data has been recorded, you can use Meridium APM analytical tools to analyze the findings and recommendations, create Alert records, and so on.

Lubrication Management System Requirements

The *Lubrication Management* license is required to take advantage of Lubrication Management functionality. In addition, your system must contain the basic Meridium APM system architecture.

After you have installed and configured the basic system architecture, you will need to perform some configuration tasks specifically for the Lubrication Management feature.

About Routes and Lubrication Requirements

In most manufacturing facilities, some work is performed at regular intervals to ensure that equipment items function properly and that safety measures are maintained. For example, when a shift starts or ends, a series of safety checks must be made to ensure the rotating equipment will function properly. Most likely, one person will perform work at multiple checkpoints to maintain efficiency.

Using Meridium APM Lubrication Management, you can define a series of checkpoints as a single *Route*, where the Route represents the checkpoints that should logically be performed in succession by the same person. You can define as many Routes as you need to accommodate the varied maintenance schedules of the equipment and locations in your facility.

In Meridium APM, a Route is represented by a Route record that stores the description and status of the Route (i.e., active versus inactive). Route records are linked to Lubrication Requirement records, which define the individual checkpoints that should be performed along the Route.

A Lubrication Requirement record stores information such as the type of checkpoint, the lubricant and method of applying it that should be used at that checkpoint, and the frequency by which the checkpoint should be completed. A Lubrication Requirement record is linked to a Route record and an Equipment or Functional Location record.

To understand how a Route works, consider the following example. As part of your yearly maintenance routine at your house, you might inspect various door hinges that require lubrication. Because these lubrication checks make sense to perform in succession (i.e., they require the same tools) by the same person, they can be grouped into the same Route.

To track the work using Meridium APM Lubrication Management, you could create a Route record and link it to multiple Lubrication Requirement records that dictate the hinge checks that should be performed along that Route. At each checkpoint, you would enter a reading value.

In the following image, you can see a Hinge Maintenance Route for a home that contains four checkpoints, which means that the Route record is linked to four Lubrication Requirement records and an Equipment record (i.e., hinge). Two of the checkpoints are at different doors in the home and the other two are at a refrigerator door and a cabinet door. You can also see that the checkpoints are numbered according to the <u>sequence</u> in which they should be completed, which is based on the layout of the items that need to be checked.



For each checkpoint along the Route, you would need record the action taken. For example, at Checkpoint 1, which is associated at an entry door, you might indicate that you applied the petroleum-based lubricant to the hinges. At Checkpoint 2, which is located at the refrigerator door, you might indicate that you applied the appropriate silicone spray lubricant, and so on.

After all checkpoints have been completed and an action has been recorded, the Route is considered *complete* until the checkpoints need to be completed again.

Lubrication Management Data Model

Before you begin using Lubrication Management in the Meridium APM Framework application, you must decide on the Equipment and Functional Location records for which you want to record readings. Via the Configuration Manager application, you must relate the Equipment or Functional Location family to the Lubrication Requirement family through the Has Checkpoint relationship. If you want to create Recommendation records based upon your findings, you will also need to relate the same family to the Lubrication Management Recommendation family through the Has Recommendations relationship. Refer to the following Lubrication Management data model for more information.



Note: <u>The Lubrication Requirement Template family</u> and the <u>Lubricant family</u> are not included in this image because they are not related to any other families in the Lubrication Management data model.

The following relationship definitions are configured in the baseline database:

- The Route family is related to the Lubrication Requirement family through the Route Has Checkpoint relationship.
- The Lubrication Requirement family is related to the Reading family through the Has Readings relationship.

Accessing the Lubrication Management Start Page

The **Lubrication Management Start Page** provides access to the features associated with Lubrication Management. To access ALL the features associated with Lubrication Management, you must be a member of the Lubrication Management *Administrator* Security Group. Members of the Lubrication Management Security *User* Security Group will have view only privileges to Lubrication Management, meaning that if members of this Security Group try to modify content in Lubrication Management, a message will appear, indicating that the user has insufficient privileges to perform the task.

To access the Lubrication Management Start Page:

• On the Meridium APM Framework main menu, click **Go To**, point to **APM Found**ation, and then click **Lubrication Management**.



The Lubrication Management Start Page appears.

Aspects of the Lubrication Management Start Page

The **Lubrication Management Start Page** displays the following links, which let you access features in Lubrication Management:

- Route Management: Displays the <u>Lubrication Management Route Management</u> <u>page</u>, where you can view and manage all Route records in the database.
- Template Management: Displays the <u>Lubrication Management Template Management page</u>, where you can view and manage Lubrication Requirement Template records.
- **Run Reports:** Displays the <u>Lubrication Management Reports page</u>, where you can view and manage reports.
- Create New Route: Displays the Record Manager with the <u>LM Explorer pane</u>, where you can create a new Route record.
- Recently Modified Routes: Displays the <u>Lubrication Management Recently Modi-</u><u>fied Routes page</u>, where you can view a list of the last ten Route records that have been modified.
- Manage Lubricants: Displays the <u>Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants</u> <u>page</u>, where you can view and modify Lubricant records.

First-Time Deployment Workflow

Deploying and configuring Lubrication Management for the first time includes completing multiple steps, which are outlined in the table in this topic. The steps in this section of the documentation provide all the information that you need to deploy Lubrication Management on top of the basic Meridium APM system architecture.

Whether a step is required or optional is indicated in the **Required/Optional** cell. Steps are marked as *Required* if you must perform the step to take advantage of Lubrication Management functionality.

The person responsible for completing each step may vary within your organization. We recommend, however, that the steps be performed in relatively the same order in which they are listed in the table.

Step	Task	Required/Optional	Notes
1	<u>Configure the Has Check-</u> <u>point Relationship</u> via the Configuration Man- ager application.	Required	None
2	<u>Configure the Has</u> <u>Recommendations rela-</u> <u>tionship</u> via the Con- figuration Manager application.	Required	None
3	Via the Configuration Manager application, modify the following family code items so that Lubrication Require- ment records can be linked to Equipment and Functional Location records: Lubrication Requirement Has Checkpoint Lubrication Man- agement Recom- mendation Has Recom- mendations 	Required	None

Step	Task	Required/Optional	Notes
4	Manage Lubrication Management Template mappings if you added fields to the Lubrication Management Template family via the Con- figuration Manager application.	Optional	This step is necessary only if you have added fields to the Lubrication Man- agement Tem- plate family.

rIMPORTANT: In addition to these tasks, after you relate the Equipment and Functional Location families to the Lubrication Requirement family (using the Has Checkpoint relationship) and the Lubrication Management Recommendation family (using the Has Recommendations relationship), you should compile the database and reset IIS on the Meridium APM Application Server.

Upgrade or Update Lubrication Management to 3.6.1.0.0

The following tables list the steps that are required to update or upgrade Lubrication Management to 3.6.1.0.0. These steps assume that you have completed the steps for upgrading the basic Meridium APM system architecture.

Upgrade from any version V3.6.0.0.0 through V3.6.0.12.3

Lubrication Management will be upgraded and configured for 3.6.1.0.0 automatically when you upgrade the components in the basic Meridium APM system architecture. No additional steps are required.

Upgrade from any version V3.5.1.0.0 through V3.5.1.12.0

Lubrication Management will be upgraded and configured for 3.6.1.0.0 automatically when you upgrade the components in the basic Meridium APM system architecture. No additional steps are required.

Upgrade from any version V3.5.0 SP1 LP through V3.5.0.1.9.0

Lubrication Management will be upgraded and configured for 3.6.1.0.0 automatically when you upgrade the components in the basic Meridium APM system architecture. No additional steps are required.

Upgrade from any version V3.5.0 through V3.5.0.0.7.1

Lubrication Management will be upgraded and configured for 3.6.1.0.0 automatically when you upgrade the components in the basic Meridium APM system architecture. No additional steps are required.

Upgrade from any version V3.4.5 through V3.4.5.0.1.4

Lubrication Management will be upgraded and configured for 3.6.1.0.0 automatically when you upgrade the components in the basic Meridium APM system architecture. No additional steps are required.

Lubrication Management Security

The following Security Groups are provided as part of the baseline Lubrication Management product:

- MI Lubrication Management Administrator
- MI Lubrication Management User

These groups support the users who will configure Lubrication Management in the Meridium APM Framework application. All of these groups have privileges assigned to them by default. The baseline privileges are summarized in the following table.

Family	MI Lubrication Management Administrator	MI Lubrication Man- agement User
Lubrication Requirement	View, Update, Insert, Delete	View
Lubrication Requirement Tem- plate	View, Update, Insert, Delete	View
Reading	View, Update, Insert, Delete	View,Update, Insert, Delete
Route	View, Update, Insert, Delete	View
Lubrication Management Recommendation	View, Update, Insert, Delete	View, Update, Insert, Delete
Lubricant	View, Update, Insert, Delete	View
Reference Document	View, Update, Insert, Delete	View
Has Checkpoint	View, Update, Insert, Delete	View
Has Readings	View, Update, Insert, Delete	View, Update, Insert, Delete
Has Recommendations	View, Update, Insert, Delete	View, Update, Insert, Delete
Has Reference Documents	View, Update, Insert, Delete	View
Route Has Checkpoint	View, Update, Insert, Delete	View

Based on the default security privileges, users who should be able to configure Lubrication Management in the Meridium APM Framework application should be assigned to the MI Lubrication Management Administrator Security Group.

Users who should be able to access Lubrication Management to view Lubrication Management data after it has been created should be assigned to the Lubrication Management Security User group.

Configuring the Has Checkpoint Relationship

The Has Checkpoint relationship is used to link Lubrication Requirement records to Equipment or Functional Location records. Because no relationship definitions are provided for this family, however, you will need to configure the following definition for the families that you want to use with Lubrication Management:

- Predecessor: Equipment or Functional Location family
- Predecessor Cardinality: Zero or One
- Successor: Lubrication Requirement
- Successor Cardinality: Zero or Many

Configuring the Has Recommendations Relationship

The Has Recommendations relationship is used to link Lubrication Management Recommendation records to Equipment or Functional Location records. Because no relationship definitions are provided for this purpose, however, you will need to configure the following definition for each Equipment or Functional Location family that you want to use with Lubrication Management:

- Predecessor: Equipment or Functional Location family
- Predecessor Cardinality: Zero or One
- Successor: Lubrication Management Recommendation
- Successor Cardinality: Zero or Many

Why Do I Need to Modify Family Code Items?

Out-of-the-box, a Lubrication Requirement record will not be linked automatically to an Equipment or Functional Location record after you save the Lubrication Requirement record. Likewise, a Lubrication Management Recommendation record will not be linked automatically to an Equipment or Functional Location record after a Lubrication Requirement Recommendation record is saved.

If, however, you modify the family code item for the following families, Lubrication Requirement and Lubrication Management Recommendation records that contain a valid Asset ID in their Asset ID fields will be linked to the associated record when you save a record in that family.

- Lubrication Requirement
- Has Checkpoint
- Lubrication Management Recommendation
- Has Recommendations

In addition, if you modify the Lubrication Requirement family code item, after you specify a valid Asset ID in the **Asset ID** cell of a Lubrication Requirement record and save the record, the **Asset Description** cell of that Lubrication Requirement record will be populated automatically.

Modifying the Lubrication Requirement Family Code Item

To modify the Lubrication Requirement family code item:

- 1. On the Configuration Manager main window, on the **Entity Family** tab, select the **Lubrication Requirement** family.
- 2. In the Tasks section, click the Manage Family Business Rules link.

The project appears in the Meridium APM Rules Editor (VSTA).

3. In the **Project Explorer**pane, expand **MI_LUBR_REQ**, double-click the **MI_LUBR_ REQ** code item.

The content of the code item appears in the main display area.

4. Within the MI_LUBR_REQ class, locate the text MyBase.New(record).

```
    <MetadataFamily()>
    Public Class MI_LUBR_REQ
    Inherits Baseline.MI_LUBR_REQ.MI_LUBR_REQ
    Public Sub New(ByVal record As Meridium.Core.DataManager.DataRecord)
    MyBase.New(record)
    End Sub
End Sub
End Class
```

- 5. Place your cursor after the text (record), and press ENTER.
- 6. Type the following:

```
MyBase._Asset_FamilyID = "[Family ID]"
```

```
MyBase. AssetID FieldID = "[Asset ID Field ID]"
```

```
MyBase._AssetDesc_FieldID = "[Asset Description Field ID]"
```

...where:

- **[Family ID]** is the ID of the Equipment or Functional Location family to which you related the Lubrication Requirement family through the Has Checkpoint relationship.
- [Asset ID Field ID] is the ID of the Asset ID field in the family that you specified with the [Family ID] value. For a link to be created between the Equipment or Functional Location record and a Lubrication Requirement record, when users create a Lubrication Requirement record, they must type in the Asset ID field a value that is stored in the field that you specify with the [Asset ID Field ID] value.

• **[Asset Description Field ID]** is the ID of the Asset Description field in the family that you specified with the **[Family ID]** value. If you specify the Asset ID field ID, after a user saves a Lubrication Requirement record that contains a valid Asset ID, the Asset Description field of that Lubrication Requirement record will be populated automatically with the value stored in the field that you specify with the **[Asset Description Field ID]** value.

For example, if the following is true:

- The Equipment family is related to the Lubrication Requirement family through the Has Checkpoint relationship.
- You want users to type in the Asset ID cell on the Lubrication Requirement datasheet the value stored in the Asset ID field of an Equipment record.
- The ID of the Asset ID field in the Equipment family is ASSET_ID_CHR.
- You want the **Asset Description** cell on the Lubrication Requirement datasheet to be populated with the value stored in the Asset Description field of the Equipment record.
- The ID of the Asset Description field in the Equipment family is ASSET_DESC_ CHR.

...the code would look like this:

```
> <MetadataFamily()> ______
Public Class MI_LUBR_REQ
Inherits Baseline.MI_LUBR_REQ.MI_LUBR_REQ
Public Sub New(ByVal record As Meridium.Core.DataManager.DataRecord)
MyBase.New(record)
MyBase._Asset_FamilyID = "Asset"
MyBase._AssetID_FieldID = "ASSET_ID_CHR"
MyBase._AssetDesc_FieldID = "ASSET_DESC_CHR"
End Sub
End Class
```

Modifying the Has Checkpoint Family Code Item

You can modify the Has Checkpoint family rules so that the Scan ID field in Measurement Location and Lubrication Requirement records will be populated automatically from fields in Equipment or Functional Location records. For example, if your scan IDs (i.e., barcode IDs or RFID tags) match the value in the Equipment Technical Number field in your Equipment records, you might want to modify the Has Checkpoint family rules to specify that the Equipment Technical Number be populated automatically in the linked Measurement Location record's Scan ID field.

To modify the Has Checkpoint family code item:

- 1. On the Configuration Manager main window, on the **Relationship Family** tab, select the **Has Checkpoint** family.
- 2. In the Tasks section, click the Manage Family Business Rules link.

The project appears in the Meridium APM Rules Editor (VSTA).

3. In the **Project Explorer** pane, double-click the **MIR_HS_MEASLOC** code item.

The code associated with the code item appears in the main display area on the **Meridium APM Rules Editor** window.

4. Within the MIR_HS_MEASLOC class, locate the text MyBase.New(record).



- 5. Place your cursor after the text (record), and press Enter.
- 6. Type the following code:

...where:

- [Family ID] is the ID of the Equipment or Functional Location family.
- [Scan ID] is the ID of the Equipment or Functional Location family field that you want to use to map to the barcodes or RFID tag field.

Note: You must type the IDs using capital letters.

For example, the following code excerpt shows a rule in the Has Checkpoint family code item that has been modified such that the Scan ID field in the Equipment family will be populated automatically with the value in the Equipment Technical Number field in the related Equipment record.

```
> <MetadataFamily()>
Public Class MIR_HS_MEASLOC
Inherits Baseline.MIR_HS_MEASLOC.MIR_HS_MEASLOC

> Public Sub New(ByVal record As Meridium.Core.DataManager.DataRecord)
MyBase.New(record)
If CurrentRelationship.Predecessor.Family.ID = "MI_EQUIP000" Then
MyBase._AssetBarcdID_FieldID = "MI_EQUIP000_EQUIP_TECH_NBR_C"
End If
End Sub
End Class
```

Modifying the Lubrication Management Recommendation Family Code Item

To modify the Lubrication Management Recommendation family code item:

- 1. On the Configuration Manager main window, on the **Entity Family** tab, select the **Lubrication Management Recommendation** family.
- 2. In the Tasks section, click the Manage Family Business Rules link.

The projects appears in the Meridium APM Rules Editor (VSTA).

3. In the **Project Explorer**pane, expand **MI_LM_REC**, and double-click the **MI_LM_ REC** code item.



4. Within the MI_LM_REC class, locate the text MyBase.New(record).

```
    <MetadataFamily()> _____
    Public Class MI_LM_REC
        Inherits Baseline.MI_LM_REC.MI_LM_REC
        Public Sub New(ByVal record As Meridium.Core.DataManager.DataRecord)
        MyBase.New(record)
        End Sub
    End Sub
    End Class
```

- 5. Place your cursor after the text (record), and press ENTER.
- 6. Type the following:

```
MyBase._Asset_FamilyID = "[Family ID]"
MyBase. AssetID FieldID = "[Field ID]"
```

...where:

- **[Family ID]** is the ID of the Equipment or Functional Location family to which you related the Lubrication Management Recommendation family through the Has Recommendations relationship.
- [Field ID] is the ID of the Equipment or Functional Location family field that you want to use to map to the Lubrication Management Recommendation family. This means that for a link to be created between the Equipment or Functional Location record and the Lubrication Management Recommendation record, the value

stored in this field must exist in the **Asset ID** cell on the Lubrication Management Recommendation datasheet when the Recommendation record is created.

Note: You must specify the family ID and field ID you specified when you <u>mod</u>ified the Lubrication Requirement family code item.

For example, if you want a link to be created between an Equipment record and an Lubrication Management Recommendation record when the value in the **Asset ID** cell on the Lubrication Management Recommendation datasheet is the same as the value in the **Asset ID** cell of an Equipment record, the code would look like this:

```
>MetadataFamily()> _____
Public Class MI_LM_REC
Inherits Baseline.MI_LM_REC.MI_LM_REC
> Public Sub New(ByVal record As Meridium.Core.DataManager.DataRecord)
MyBase.New(record)
MyBase._Asset_FamilyID = "Asset"
MyBase._Asset_FieldID = "Asset"
End Sub
End Sub
End Class
```

Modifying the Has Recommendation Family Code Item

To modify the Has Recommendations family code item:

- 1. On the Configuration Manager main window, on the **Relationship Family** tab, select the **Has Recommendations** family.
- 2. In the Tasks section, click the Manage Family Business Rules link.

The project appears in the Meridium APM Rules Editor (VSTA).

3. In the **Project Explorer**pane, double-click the **MI_Has_Recommendations** code item.

The associated code appears in the main display area of the **Meridium APM Rules Editor**.

4. Within the MI_Has_Recommendations class, locate the text MyBase.New(record).



- 5. Place your cursor after the text (record), and press ENTER.
- 6. Type the following:

```
MyBase. AssetID FieldID = "[Field ID]"
```

...where:

• [Field ID] is the ID of the Equipment family field that you want to use to map to the Lubrication Management Recommendation family. This means that for a link to be created between the Equipment record and an Lubrication Management Recommendation record, the value stored in this field is the value that must exist in the Asset ID cell on the Lubrication Management Recommendation datasheet when the Lubrication Management Recommendation record is created.

Note: Make sure this is the same field ID you specified when you <u>modified the</u> <u>Lubrication Requirement family code item</u>.

For example, if you want a link to be created between an Equipment record and an Lubrication Management Recommendation record when the value in the **Asset ID** cell on the Lubrication Management Recommendation datasheet is the same as the value in the **Asset ID** cell of an Equipment record, the code would look like this:

```
    <MetadataFamily()>
    Public Class MI_Has_Recommendations
    Inherits Baseline.MI_Has_Recommendations.MI_Has_Recommendations
    Public Sub New(ByVal record As Meridium.Core.DataManager.DataRecord)
        MyBase.New(record)
        MyBase.AssetID_FieldID = "ASSET_ID_CHR"
        End Sub
    End Class
```

Managing Lubrication Requirement Template Mappings

The Lubrication Requirement Template family and the Lubrication Requirement family are provided as part of the baseline Lubrication Management product. If you create a Lubrication Requirement Template record in the Meridium APM Framework application, you can then create a Lubrication Requirement record based on that template. If you do so, all values in Lubrication Requirement Template fields that also exist on the Lubrication Requirement datasheet will be mapped automatically to the new Lubrication Requirement record.

You might find that the Lubrication Requirement Template and Lubrication Requirement datasheets do not contain all fields that your Lubrication Management users need. If so, and you want to add fields so the values from the new Lubrication Requirement Template fields will be mapped to Lubrication Requirement records based on that template, you will need to:

- Create a new Lubrication Requirement Template field.
- Add the new Lubrication Requirement Template field to the Lubrication Requirement Template datasheet.
- Create a new Lubrication Requirement field. Note that we recommend that the field caption of this field be the same as the field caption you defined for the Lubrication Requirement Template field. This will ensure that the text in the field IDs that identifies the fields are the same. *If they are not the same, the values will not be mapped from the Lubrication Requirement Template to the Lubrication Requirement record.*
- Add the new Lubrication Requirement field to the Lubrication Requirement datasheet.
- Modify the physical tables for both families.

About the LM Explorer

The LM Explorer is the configured explorer that you will use to work with Lubrication Management records in the Record Manager. It displays the following records, where the Route record is displayed at the root level:

- Route
- Lubrication Requirement
- Reading
- Reference Document



The **LM Explorer** pane will appear in the Record Manager in place of the standard **Record Explorer** pane when you create Route records using the **Create New Route**link on the **Lubrication Management Start Page**.

You can right-click any family node in the record hierarchy and create a record for that family. After you have created and saved a record for a given family, any related families that are configured to appear in the **LM Explorer** pane will be displayed below that family. For example, after you create a Route record and save it, the Lubrication Requirement family node will appear in the record hierarchy.

Note: To create a Reading record, you should use the **Create Reading** link on the **Associated Pages** menu instead of the shortcut menu in the **LM Explorer** pane.

Lubrication Management Associated Pages

The following Associated Page is configured by default for the Lubrication Requirement family:

• **Create Reading:** Displays the **(new Reading)** window, where you can create a Reading record linked to the Measurement Location record.

Note: To see the underlying URL for this Associated Page, you can use the URL Manager application.

Accessing the Lubrication Management Route Management Page

Meridium APM provides the Route Management query, which is run when you access the **Lubrication Management Route Management** page. On this page, you can view a list of all Route records that exist in the database. You can use this page to view the existing Route records or create new Route records.

To access the Lubrication Management Route Management Page:

• On the Lubrication Management Start Page, click the Route Management link.

The <u>Lubrication Management Route Management page</u> appears, displaying all existing Route records.

😵 Meridium APM Framework - Lubrication Management Route Management				
Eile Edit <u>G</u> o To Iools <u>H</u> elp				
🏶 Back + 🕫 Forward + 🍘 My Start Page + 휅 New 🔎 Search 📂 Catalog 🔞 Ouery + 🕅 Report + 🕅 Graph + 🚭 Dataset + ன Dashboard +				
meridium	meridium Route Management			
Lubrication	Route ID	Route Description	Route Status	
Management	Route X	OPR Test Route (3 MLs :: Hist Data on ML 02)	Active	
Route Tasks 🛛 😽	Route G	A Dozen MLs (ML 05 has Branching Logic)	Active	
	<u>10 R</u>	Reference documents to be attached	Active	
Create Route	Route with a longer than usual name	QA Test Route - ML with very long Asset ID	Active	
🖉 Edit Route	Route T	OPR Short Route (Two MLs)	Active	
X Delete Route	Blue	OPR Route w/ Bluetooth MLs	Active	
	<u>61</u>	Has 61 MLs	Active	
Common Tasks 🛛 😻	Route A	LUBRICATION Route	Active	
Send To >>	Route C	Empty Test Route (No MLs & No LRs)	Active	
(2) Help	Upgrade Test	OPR Upgrade Test Route	Active	
	Route R	Empty Test Route (No MLs & No LRs)	Active	
	LUBE	Lubrication Checks & Balances	Active	
	Benchmark	Longer Route (220 + MLs & Cond Chk @ every 25th	Active	
	DUDLEY	INACTIVE QA Test Route (control case)	Inactive	
	Route 66	Alternate Route for OPR QA Testing	Active	
	One-K	Performance Route (1024 MLs)	Active	
	Down Under	OUTBACK Route (for Multi-Time Zone testing)	Active	
			•	
	Page: of 1 17 records found	«« First « Previous Next » Last »»	Page Size: 1000	

Aspects of the Lubrication Management Route Management Page

The **Lubrication Management Route Management** page displays the following items:

- Task Menus: Menus that provide specific functionality. The following task menus are available: <u>Route Tasks</u> and <u>Common Tasks</u>.
- Route Management workspace: The area that provides a list of Route records.

The **Route Management** workspace displays the results of the Route Management query, which returns all Route records that exist in the database. Each row on this page represents one Route record. The columns display the following information for each Route record:

- **Route ID:** The name of the Route. The Route ID appears as a hyperlink, which you can click to open the Route record in the Record Manager.
- Route Description: The description of the Route.
- Route Status: The status of a Route: Active or Inactive.

	Route ID	Route Description	Route Status
₽	Route X	Route X	Active
	Route G	Route G	Active

At the bottom of the page, various options (e.g., **First** and **Previous** links) are available to allow you to navigate the results. These options function just like they do in the query results.

Using the **Lubrication Management Route Management** page, you can <u>create a new</u> <u>Route record</u> or <u>modify an existing Route record</u>, if desired.

Route Tasks Menu



The **Route Tasks** menu on the **Lubrication Management Route Management** page contains the following links:

- **Create Route:** Displays a new Route record in the Record Manager.
- Edit Route: Displays the selected Route record in the Record Manager, where you can modify the record and then save your changes.
- **Delete Route:** After asking for confirmation, deletes the selected Route record from the database. Note that you can delete only one Route record at a time using this link. If you select multiple rows, the row with the right arrow indicator represents the Route record that will be deleted.
Common Tasks Menu



The **Common Tasks** menu on the **Lubrication Management Route Management** page contains the following links:

- Send To: Displays a submenu with options that let you send a link to the current page to your desktop (create shortcut), in an email message, or a Home Page.This link is disabled if there are no existing Route records.
- Help: Displays the context-sensitive Help topic for the Lubrication Management Route Management page.

About Creating Route Records

Before you can create <u>Lubrication Requirement</u> records that are linked to a Route record, you must create the Route record. Route records help you organize and group Lubrication Requirement records for a given piece of equipment or location. How you group Lubrication Requirement records depends on the needs of your company.

Some equipment may require multiple lubricant types, and some equipment will require the same lubricant. In this way, you would create a Route based on the requirements of the equipment.

For example, a house contains door hinges, which exist in various locations in the house and require multiple types of lubricants, depending on the hinge. A house also contains a furnace motor, which has only one location and requires only one type of lubricant. Hinges may require a silicone spray lubricant or a grease, while a furnace motor will require only a grease. This means that you could create a Route record and link it to Lubrication Requirement records based on:

- Multiple pieces of equipment that require the same lubricant (e.g., grease for a furnace motor and hinges that require grease).
- Multiple pieces of equipment that exists in one location and require different lubricants (e.g., silicone spray and grease for various hinges in the kitchen).
- One type of equipment that exists in multiple locations and requires the same lubricant (e.g., silicone spray for door hinges).
- One piece of equipment that exists in one location and requires one or more lubricants (e.g., grease for multiple components on the furnace motor).

Again, how you configure Route records will vary depending on the needs of your company. The instructions in this documentation provide details on creating a Route record from the **Lubrication Management Start Page**.

Note that this is not the only method that you can use, however. For example, you can also create a Route record by:

- Clicking the **Create Route** link on the **Route Tasks** menu on the **Lubrication Management Route Management** page.
- Clicking the New button on the Meridium APM Framework toolbar. Note that if you use this option, you will see the Record Explorer pane instead of the LM Explorer pane.

Creating a Route Record from the Lubrication Management Start Page

Before you can <u>create Lubrication Requirement records</u> and link them to a Route record, you must create the Route record.

Note: Only members of the Lubrication Management Administrator Security Group can access the feature described in these instructions. If you are not a member of the Lubrication Management Security Group and you click the **Create New Route** link, an error message will appear, indicating that you have insufficient security privileges.

To create a Route record from the Lubrication Management Start Page:

1. On the Lubrication Management Start Page, click the Create New Route link.

LM Explorer	×	-	Record Mar	nager
······ • (New Route)		<er< th=""><th>npty> (New Rout</th><th>re)</th></er<>	npty> (New Rout	re)
	- 1	Data	asheet Route	💌 🕺 🖥 🗶 🖕 🚳 😒 🖽
		Valı	ue(s)	
			[Value(s)
		►	Route ID	
			Route Description	
			Status	Inactive
			Route Scan ID	
			Schedule	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
			Next Date	
			Last Date	
		L		

The new Route record appears in the Record Manager.

Note: Only members of the Lubrication Management Administrator Security Group can access this feature. If you are not a member of the Lubrication Management Administrator Security Group and you click this link, an error message will appear, indicating that you have insufficient security privileges.

- 3. In the **Route ID** cell, type a unique ID for the Route.
- 4. In the **Route Description** cell, type a description of the Route.
- 5. In the **Status** list, select **Active** or **Inactive**. Note that**Active** is selected by default.
- 6. On the **Common Tasks** menu, click the **Save** link.

The Route record is saved.

Note: The fields *Schedule, Next Date*, and *Last Date* in the Route record are not used in the Lubrication Management module.

Modifying an Existing Route Record

After a Route record has been created and saved, you can access the Route record and modify its content at any time. After a Route record has been modified, you can view that Route record on the **Lubrication Management Recently Modified Routes** page.

Note: Modifying the contents of a Route record will not affect the Lubrication Requirement records that are linked to that Route record.

To modify an existing Route record:

1. On the Lubrication Management Start Page, click the Route Management link.

The **Lubrication Management Route Management** page appears, displaying all the Route records that exist in the database.

2. Select the row containing the Route record that you want to modify, and on the **Route Tasks** menu, click the **Edit Route** link.

The Route record appears in the Record Manager.

- 3. Modify the Route record as desired.
- 4. On the **Common Tasks** menu, click the **Save** link.

Your changes are saved to the database, and the Route record can now be viewed on the <u>Lubrication Requirement Recently Modified Routes page</u>.

Accessing the List of Recently Modified Route Records

On the **Lubrication Management Recently Modified Routes** page, you can view a list of the last ten Route records that have been modified and the Security User who last modified the Route record.

To access the Lubrication Management Recently Modified Routes page:

• On the**Lubrication Requirement Start Page**, click the**Recently Modified Routes**link.

The **Lubrication Management Recently Modified Routes** page appears, displaying the last ten Route records that were modified.



Aspects of the Lubrication Management Recently Modified Routes Page

The **Lubrication Management Recently Modified Routes** page contains the following items:

- Common Tasks menu: Provides access to common functionality.
- **Recently Modified Routes workspace:** Displays a list of Route records that were recently modified.

The **Recently Modified Routes** workspace displays the last ten Route records that have been modified. Each row in the results represents one Route record, and the columns contain the following information:

- **Route ID:** The name of the Route. The ID appears as a hyperlink, which you can click to open the Route record in the Record Manager.
- **Description:** The description of the Route.
- Last Updated By: The name of the Security User who last updated the Route record.

Note: The maximum number of records that can be displayed on the **Lubrication Management Recently Modified Routes** page is 10. If you change the page size to a number *greater than* 10, only up to 10 records will be displayed.

Using the **Lubrication Management Recently Modified Routes** page, you can access an <u>existing Route record and modify it</u>.

Common Tasks Menu



The **Common Tasks** menu on the **Lubrication Management Recently Modified Routes** page contains the following links:

- Send To: Displays a submenu with options that let you send a link to the current page to your desktop (create shortcut), in an email message, or a Home Page.This link is disabled if no Route records are displayed.
- Help: Displays the context-sensitive Help topic for the Lubrication Management Recently Modified Routes page.

About Configuring Lubricants that are Associated with a Checkpoint

Lubricant records serve as a means for organizing all the lubricants that are used by your company. A Lubricant record stores the following information about a lubricant:

- Lubricant Manufacturer: The company that manufactures the lubricant (i.e., the brand).
- Lubricant: The type of lubricant (e.g., silicone).
- **Method:** The method that is used to apply the lubricant (e.g., spray).

When you create a Lubricant record, the values that you enter in these fields will be used to populate the corresponding lists on the <u>Lubrication Requirement datasheet</u>, where you can select the desired values from a list.

Accessing the Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants Page

On the **Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants** page, you can view and modify Lubricant records.

To access the Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants page:

• On the Lubrication Management Start Page, click the Manage Lubricants link.

The **Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants** page appears, displaying all existing Lubricant records in the Bulk Data Form.

Seridium APM Framework -	- Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants		
<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>G</u> o To <u>T</u> ools	Help		
🍣 Back 👻 🋞 Forward 👻 🐔	1 My Start Page 👻 🎽 New 🔎 Search 🗯 Cat	alog 🔞 Query 🕶 🛅 Report 🗸 👩 Grapi	h 🕶 🧟 Dataset 🕶 🔤 Dashboard 🕶
· · · ·	- Lubricants		
meridium			
Lubrication		Filter by Manufacturer :	•
Management		Filter by Lubricant :	-
Common Tasks 🛛 😵	Datasheet Lubricant	🖬 🗙	
≡ Send To >>	Lubricant		
🕐 Help	Lubricant Manufacturer	Lubricant	Method
	Mobil	SCH 800 Series	Trans Change Out
	🕼 Mobil	DTE 800 Series	Trans Change Out
	Mobile 1	Synth 10w10	Change
	Di Excon	10w2	Change
	😡 XGR	Low - Temp Pet	Gun
	🕨 💭 XGR	Hi - Temp Lithium	Gun
	*		

Aspects of the Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants Page

The **Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants** page displays all existing Lubricant records. From this page, you can modify, create, or delete Lubricant records.

The **Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants** page contains the following items:

- Common Tasks menu: Provides access to common functionality.
- Lubricants workspace: Displays all Lubricant records that exist in the database.

The Lubricants workspace contains two filtering lists:

- Filter by Manufacturer: Displays a list of all values in the Lubricant Manufacturer field in existing Lubricant records.
- Filter by Lubricant: Displays a list of all values in the Lubricant field in existing Lubricant records whose Lubricant Manufacturer value corresponds with your selection in the Filter by Manufacturer list. This list is enabled only when a value is selected in the Filter by Manufacturer list.

You may find it useful to <u>filter the list</u> to display only the Lubricant records with a specific Manufacturer or a combination of Manufacturer and Lubricant.

Each row in the **Lubricants** workspace represents one Lubricant record and displays the value in the Lubricant Manufacturer, Lubricant, and Method fields in that record.

Using the **Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants** page, you can <u>create new Lubricant records</u>, modify existing Lubricant record, or delete Lubricant records.

Common Tasks Menu



The **Common Tasks** menu on the **Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants** page contains the following links:

- Send To: Displays a submenu with options that let you send a link to the current page to your desktop (create shortcut), in an email message, or a Home Page.
- Help: Displays the context-sensitive Help topic for the Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants page.

Lubricants and the Lubrication Requirement Datasheet: An Example

To fully understand how Lubricant records work in Lubrication Management, you must understand how the values that you type in a Lubricant record correspond to fields on the Lubrication Requirement datasheet. The connection is best understood through an example.

Suppose your database contains Lubricant records that are configured as shown in the following image, which displays the records in the Bulk Data Form:

Datasheet Lubricant		
Lubricant		
Lubricant Manufacturer	Lubricant	Method
Manufacturer X	Grease	Gun
😡 Manufacturer X	Silicone Spray	Spray
Manufacturer Z	Petroleum-based grease	Mo
Manufacurer Y	Low temp grease	Gun
Mobile 1	10w30	Change
Mobile 1	5w20	Change
VXRec	High temp grease	Gun
VXRec	White Lithium	Pressure Gun

You can see that for Manufacturer X, the lubricants are Grease and Silicone Spray, and the Methods are Gun and Spray.

If you create a Lubrication Requirement record and select *Gun* in the **Method** list and *Manufacturer X* in the **Lubricant Manufacturer** list, you can select *Grease* or *Silicone spray* from the **Lubricant** list.

Da	ta	sheet Lubrication Requi	rement 🔽 😼 🛃 🚼 🎲 🗙 🛍 🎍 😒 🖏
Id	ег	tification	
			Value(s)
		Template	
		Asset ID	
		Asset Description	
		Description	
		LR Type	Check Off
		Unit of Measure	
		Method	Gun
		Lubricant Manufacturer	Manufacturer X
	1	Lubricant	
		Status	Grease
		Schedule	Silicone Spray
		Last Date	
		Next Date	
		Sequence	
		Component	×
		Number of Points	L
		Capacity	

Filtering Lubricant Records

On the **Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants** page, you can filter the list for easier access to the desired records. You can filter the values in the Lubricant Manufacturer field or a combination of the Lubricant Manufacturer and Lubricant fields.

To filter the list on the Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants page:

1. In the **Lubricants** workspace, in the **Filter by Manufacturer** list, select a manufacturer on which you want to filter the Lubricant records. This list contains all unique values in the Lubricant Manufacturer field in existing Lubricant records.

The Lubricant records are filtered based upon your selection. For example, consider the following Lubricant records.

- Lub	ricants		
	Filter by Mar Filter by	ufacturer : v	
Datasnee			
	N.]		
	Lubricant Manufacturer	Lubricant	Method
	Exxon	Ronex Extra Duty 2	Change
	Excon	10w2	Change
	XGR	Low - Temp Pet	Gun
	XGR	Hi-Temp lithium	Gun
	Chevron	Ulti-plex EP 2	Cartridge
	Conoco	Milube	Cartridge
	Pennzoil	Prem Lithium Complex-2	Cartridge
	Mobil	Mobilgrease FM 102	Gun
	ACME	WILE-E QI-YOTE	Capture
	Valvoline	HD Grade Oil	Fill
	Chevron	SRI	Cartridge
	Conoco	SynCon Extra Long Life	Gun
	Exxon	Polyrex EM	Change
	Mobil	Mobilith SHC 460	Cartridge
	Chevron	Delo EP 2	Cartridge
	Exxon	Unirex N	Change
	BP	Energrease A-FG	Cartridge
	Conoco	Super-STA 2	Change
	Mobil	SCH 800 Series	Trans Change Out
	Mobil	SCH 1600 Marine Grade	Trans Change Out
	Exxon	Ronex MP	Change
	Pennzoil	Pennlith EP-712	Cartridge
	Mobil	SCH PM	Trans Change Out
	Exxon	Unirex EP2	Change
	Mobil	Synth Motor Oil 10W-30	Change
*			

Continuing with the example, if you selected *Chevron* in the **Filter by Man-ufacturer** list, the Lubricant records would be filtered according to your selection, as shown in the following image.

- Lubricants		
Filter by Ma Filter by	nufacturer: Chevron 💌	
Datasheet Lubricant		
Lubricant		
Lubricant Manufacturer	Lubricant	Method
Chevron	SRI	Cartridge
Chevron Chevron	Delo EP 2	Cartridge
Chevron	Ulti-plex EP 2	Cartridge
*		

2. If you want to filter the records further (by lubricant), in the **Lubricants** workspace, in the **Filter by Lubricant** list, select a lubricant on which you want to filter Lubricant records. This list contains all unique values in the Lubricant field in Lubricant records that correspond with your selection in the **Filter by Manufacturer** list.

The Lubricant records are filtered based upon your selection.

Continuing with the example, if you selected *SRI* in the *Filter by Lubricant* list, the Lubricant records would be filtered according to your selection, as shown in the following image.

- Lubricants			
	Filter by Mar	nufacturer : Chevron	
	Filter by	Lubricant: SRI	
Datasheet Lubricant	🖃 🛃 🗙		
Lubricant			
Lubricant Manufacturer		Lubricant	Method
Chevron		SRI	Cartridge
*			

About Creating Lubricant Records

You can create Lubricant records in two ways:

- <u>Create the first Lubricant record</u>.
- Create subsequent Lubricant records.

Creating the First Lubricant Record

To create the first Lubricant record:

1. On the Lubrication Management Start Page, click the Manage Lubricants link.

The Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants page appears.

- 2. In the **Lubricants** workspace, in the first empty row at the bottom of the grid, in the **Lubricant Manufacturer** list, type the name of the manufacturer.
- 3. In the same row, in the **Lubricant** cell, type the lubricant that is associated with the manufacturer (e.g., grease).
- 4. In the same row, in the **Method** cell, type the method that should be used with this lubricant. This information will indicate to the person who is responsible for completing the associated checkpoint how to apply the lubricant.
- 5. Click the **Save** button.

The Lubricant record is saved.

Creating Subsequent Lubricant Records

The following instructions explain how to use the **Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants** page to create subsequent Lubricant records with a specific manufacturer. You can also use these instructions to modify values in an existing Lubricant record.

To create subsequent allowable values for a specific manufacturer:

1. On the Lubrication Management Start Page, click the Manage Lubricants link.

The **Lubrication Management Manage Lubricants** page appears, displaying all existing Lubricant records in Bulk Data Form.

EHint: If desired, you can <u>filter these records</u> by manufacturer to see all the records that exist for a specific manufacturer.

2. To add a new Lubricant record with the same manufacturer as one that already exists, in the first blank row at the bottom of the grid, in the Lubricant Manufacturer cell, click the solution, and select a value from the list.

The list in the **Lubricant** cell in that row is populated automatically with the values that exist in Lubricant records whose Lubricant Manufacturer value corresponds with your selection in the **Lubrication Manufacturer** cell.

- 3. In the same row, in the **Lubricant** cell, type a value or click the **value** button, and select a value from the list.
- 4. In the same row, in the **Method** cell, type a value or click the 💌 button, and select a value from the list.
- 5. Continue entering information in each row as desired.
- 6. Click the 🛃 icon.

The new Lubricant records are saved to the database.

Options for Creating Lubrication Requirement Records

To create a Lubrication Requirement record, you can:

- Create it from scratch.
 - -or-
- <u>Create it from a template</u>.

Accessing the Lubrication Management Template Management Page

Meridium APM provides the Template Management query, which is run when you <u>access the Lubrication Management Template Management page</u>. On this page, you can view a list of all Lubrication Requirement Template records that exist in the database. You can use this page to view the existing Lubrication Requirement Template records or create new Lubrication Requirement Template records.

To access the Lubrication Management Template Management Page:

• On the Lubrication Management Start Page, click the Template Management link.

The **Lubrication Management Template Management** page appears, displaying all existing Lubrication Management Template records.

谷 Meridium APM Framework ·	- Lubrication Management Template Management		
<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>G</u> o To <u>T</u> ools	<u>H</u> elp		
🍣 Back 👻 🍥 Forward 👻 🐔	n My Start Page 👻 🎽 New 🔎 Search D Catalo	og 🔞 Query + 🛅 Report + 🚺 Graph + 🍕 Dat	taset 🕶 💶 Dashboard 🕶
120			
meridium	Template Management		
Lubrication	Template ID	Description	Template Type
Management	Change Out	Drain & Refill	Change Out
Template Tasks 🛛 😽	Check Off	Inspect	Check Off
Create I P Template	Tracking LR	Lube Req Tracking	Tracking
	Top Off	Fill Oil Reservoir	Check Off
Edit l'emplate	FPA Bearings	PM Lubrication within Food Processing Areas	Change Out
X Delete Template	GOOD THURS	QA LR TEMPL	Check Off
Common Tasks 🛛 📎			
Send To >>			
🕖 Help			
			*
	•		Þ
	Page: of 1 6 records found	«« First « Previous Next » Last »»	Page Size: 1000

Aspects of the Lubrication Management Template Management Page

The **Lubrication Management Template Management** page contains the following items:

- Task menus:Provide specific functionality. The following task menus are available:<u>Template Tasks</u>and<u>Common Tasks</u>.
- **Template Management workspace:**Displays a list of all existing Lubrication Requirement Template records.

Using the **Lubrication Management Template Management page**, you can perform the following tasks:

- View the <u>schedule</u> associated with each Lubrication Requirement Template record.
- Create new Lubrication Requirement Template records.
- Modify existing Lubrication Requirement Template records.

Template Tasks Menu



The **Template Tasks** menu on the **Lubrication Management Template Management** page contains the following links:

- **Create LR Template:** Displays a new Lubrication Requirement Template record in the Record Manager.
- Edit Template: Displays the selected Lubrication Requirement Template record in the Record Manager, where you can modify the record and then save your changes.
- **Delete Template:** After asking for confirmation, deletes the selected Lubrication Requirement Template record from the database. Note that you can delete only one Lubrication Requirement Template record at a time using this link. If you select multiple rows, the row with the right arrow indicator represents the record that will be deleted.

Common Tasks Menu



The **Common Tasks** menu on the **Lubrication Management Template Management** page contains the following links:

- Send To: Displays a submenu with options that let you send a link to the current page to your desktop (create shortcut), in an email message, or a Home Page. This link is disabled if no Lubrication Requirement Template records are displayed.
- Help: Displays the context-sensitive Help topic for the Lubrication Management Template Management page.

Creating a Lubrication Requirement Template Record

If desired, you can create a Lubrication Requirement Template record that you can then use to create Lubrication Requirement records. By default, the Lubrication Requirement Template datasheet contains almost all the <u>fields that appear on the Lubrication</u> <u>Requirement datasheet</u>. After you save a Lubrication Requirement Template record, when you <u>create a Lubrication Requirement record based on the template</u>, all values in the template will be copied to the Lubrication Requirement record.

To create a Lubrication Requirement Template record:

1. On the <u>Lubrication Requirement Template Managementpage</u>, on the **Template Tasks** menu, click the **Create LR Template** link.

<en< th=""><th>npty> (New Lubrication</th><th>ı Requirement Template)</th></en<>	npty> (New Lubrication	ı Requirement Template)
Data	sheet Lubrication Require	ement 🔽 🔁 🛃 🛃 🔀 🚺 🍓 🕓 🗒
Ide	ntification	
		Value(s)
Þ	Asset ID	
	Asset Description	
	Template ID	
	Description	
	LR Type	
	Unit of Measure	
	Method	
	Lubricant Manufacturer	
	Lubricant	
	Status	Active
	Schedule	···
	Sequence	
	Component	
	Number of Points	
	Capacity	
	Capacity Unit of Measure	
	Priority	

A new Lubrication Requirement Template record appears in the Record Manager.

2. Complete the fields as desired. Note that the Template ID field and the LR Type field are required.

The Template ID field can contain any value you choose. The value you type will appear in the **Template** cell on the Lubrication Requirement datasheet when you create a new Lubrication Requirement record, so you will want to type a value that is meaningful to users who will be creating Lubrication Requirement records from this template.

Note: If the Template ID contains an apostrophe, an error message appears when you create a Lubrication Requirement record from the Lubrication Requirement Template record.

If you select **Check Off** in the **LR Type** list, the Unit of Measure field will be disabled.

3. When you have completed the fields, on the **Common Tasks** menu, click the **Save** link.

The Lubrication Requirement Template record is saved. You can now <u>create a</u> <u>Lubrication Requirement record from this template</u>.

Creating a Lubrication Requirement Record from Scratch

To create a Lubrication Requirement record from scratch:

 On the <u>Lubrication Management Route Managementpage</u>, click the hyperlinked Route ID of the Route record to which you want to link Lubrication Requirement records.

The Route record is displayed in the Record Manager.

 In the LM Explorer pane, right-click the Lubrication Requirement family node, and on the shortcut menu, click Create a new Lubrication Requirement to link to <root record>, where <root record> is the Route ID of the Route record.

The **(new Lubrication Requirement)** window appears, displaying a blank Lubrication Requirement datasheet.

(n	~~ (new Lubric	cation Requirement)	
Dat	asheet Lubrication Require	ment 🗸	
Ide	entification		
	[Value(s)	
┢	Template		-
┢	Asset ID		
	Asset Description		-
	Description		
	LR Type		
	Unit of Measure		
	Method		
	Lubricant Manufacturer		
	Lubricant		
	Status	Active	
	Schedule	•	••••
	Last Date		
	Next Date		
	Sequence		
	Component		
	Number of Points		
	Capacity		
	Capacity Unit of Measure		
	Priority		
			_
		OK Cancel	

3. <u>Complete the fields as desired</u>. Note that the LR Type field is required.

If you select *Check Off* in the **LR Type** cell, the Unit of Measure field will be disabled.

4. Click **OK** to save the record.

The Lubrication Requirement record appears in the Record Manager.

Creating a Lubrication Requirement Record from a Template

To create a Lubrication Requirement record from a Template:

1. On the <u>Lubrication Management Route Management page</u>, click the hyperlinked Route ID of the Route record to which you want to link Lubrication Requirement records.

The Route record is displayed in the Record Manager.

 In the LM Explorer pane, right-click the Lubrication Requirement family node, and on the shortcut menu, click Create a new Lubrication Requirement to link to <root record>, where <root record> is the Route ID of the Route record.

The **(new Lubrication Requirement)** window appears, displaying a blank Lubrication Requirement datasheet.

	(ne	w Lubrication Requirem	ent)	E
atasheet Lubrication Requirement ▼ dentification Value(s) ▶ Template Asset ID Asset Description Description Unit of Measure Method Lubricant Manufacturer Lubricant Active Status Active Schedule Next Date Sequence Capacity Unit of Measure Number of Points Capacity Unit of Measure Priority	~	~ (new Lubri	cation Requirement)	
dentification Value(s) Template Asset ID Asset DE Asset Description Description UR Type Unit of Measure Unit of Measure Lubricant Manufacturer Lubricant Status Active Schedule Last Date Next Date Sequence Component Number of Points Capacity Capacity Unit of Measure Priority	ata	sheet Lubrication Require	ment 🔽	
Value(s) ▶ Template Asset ID Asset Description Description LR Type Unit of Measure Method Lubricant Manufacturer Lubricant Status Active Schedule Last Date Next Date Sequence Component Number of Points Capacity Unit of Measure Priority	den	tification		
Template Asset ID Asset Description Description LR Type Unit of Measure Method Lubricant Manufacturer Lubricant Status Active Schedule Last Date Next Date Sequence Component Number of Points Capacity Capacity Unit of Measure	[,	Value(s)	
Asset ID Asset Description Description LR Type Unit of Measure Method Lubricant Manufacturer Lubricant Status Active Schedule Last Date Next Date Sequence Component Number of Points Capacity Capacity Unit of Measure	ъÌ	Template		
Asset Description Description LR Type Unit of Measure Method Lubricant Manufacturer Lubricant Manufacturer Status Active Schedule Last Date Next Date Sequence Component Number of Points Capacity Capacity Unit of Measure		Asset ID		
Description LR Type Unit of Measure Method Lubricant Manufacturer Lubricant Status Active Schedule Last Date Next Date Sequence Component Number of Points Capacity Unit of Measure		Asset Description		
LR Type Image: Component Unit of Measure Image: Component Lubricant Image: Component Status Active Schedule Image: Component Number of Points Image: Component Capacity Image: Component Priority Image: Component		Description		
Unit of Measure Method Lubricant Manufacturer Lubricant Status Active Status Active Schedule Image: Status Last Date Image: Status Next Date Image: Status Sequence Image: Status Component Image: Status Number of Points Image: Status Capacity Image: Status Priority Image: Status		LR Type		
Method Lubricant Manufacturer Lubricant Status Active Status Active Schedule Image: Component Next Date Image: Component Number of Points Image: Component Capacity Image: Capacity Capacity Unit of Measure Image: Capacity		Unit of Measure		
Lubricant Manufacturer Lubricant Status Active Schedule		Method		
Lubricant Status Active Schedule Image: Component Number of Points Image: Component Capacity Image: Component Priority Image: Component		Lubricant Manufacturer		
Status Active Schedule		Lubricant		
Schedule Last Date Next Date Sequence Component Number of Points Capacity Capacity Unit of Measure Priority		Status	Active	
Last Date Next Date Sequence Component Number of Points Capacity Capacity Unit of Measure Priority		Schedule		•••
Next Date Sequence Component Number of Points Capacity Capacity Unit of Measure Priority		Last Date		
Sequence Component Number of Points Capacity Capacity Unit of Measure Priority		Next Date		
Component Number of Points Capacity Capacity Unit of Measure Priority		Sequence		
Number of Points Capacity Capacity Unit of Measure Priority		Component		
Capacity Capacity Unit of Measure Priority		Number of Points		
Capacity Unit of Measure Priority		Capacity		
Priority		Capacity Unit of Measure		
		Priority		
OK Cance			ок	Cancel

- 3. In the **Template** list, select the Lubrication Requirement Template record whose field values you want to use to populate fields in this Lubrication Requirement record.
- 4. Click another field on the datasheet.

The remaining fields are populated based on the values in the selected Lubrication Requirement Template record. Note that you can modify the values if desired.

Cha	ange Out (new Lubricatio	on Requirement)	6
~	~Change Out	(new Lubrication Requirement)	
ata	asheet Lubrication Require	ement 🗸	
de	ntification		
		Value(s)	٦
	Template	Change Out	
	Asset ID		
	Asset Description		
Þ	Description	Drain & Refill	
	LR Type	Change Out	
	Unit of Measure	Liters (LITER)	
	Method	Change	
	Lubricant Manufacturer	Exxon	
	Lubricant		
	Status	Active	
	Schedule	Due every 1 day effective 12/15/2008 12:00:00 AM.	••
	Last Date		
	Next Date	4/14/2012	
	Sequence		
	Component		
	Number of Points	1	
	Capacity	4	
	Capacity Unit of Measure		
	Priority		
		OK Cancel	

Note: The Lubricant field is not populated with the value in the **Lubricant** cell in the Lubrication Requirement Template record.

- 5. Complete the remaining fields as desired.
- 6. Click **OK** to save the record.

The Lubrication Requirement record appears in the Record Manager.

About Defining a Schedule for Lubrication Requirements

In most cases, you will want checkpoints to be completed on a regular basis. For example, you would want to lubricate some bearings hourly or some components daily. To manage these scenarios, you can define a schedule for each Lubrication Requirement.

After you define a schedule in a new Lubrication Requirement record, the Schedule field will contain a description of when the checkpoint should be completed. For example, if the schedule dictates that the checkpoint should be completed daily, the Schedule field might contain the text *Due every 1 day effective 8/8/13 7:00:00:00 AM*.

In addition, the value in the Next Date field in that Lubrication Requirement will be updated based on the schedule and the current date. After you link a Reading record to the Lubrication Requirement record, the Next Date value will be updated according to the defined schedule and the last date. You can modify a calculated Next Date value at any time, if desired.

Accessing the Scheduling Feature

To access the scheduling feature:

• On the Lubrication Requirement datasheet, in the **Schedule** cell, click the <u>•••</u> button in the **Schedule** cell.

The **Schedule** window appears.

Schedule	
Meridium APM Schedule Manager	
Recurrence pattern Next occurrence: One time only Every Hourly Every Daily Every weekday	
C Monthly C Yearly Range of recurrence	Irrence
Start: 12:00 AM 💌 12/15/2008 💌	No end date
	C End after 10 🕂 occurrence(s)
	C End by 1/19/2010 💌
	OK Cancel Help

About the Schedule Window

The following table lists the schedules by which you can configure an item to be due using the **Schedule** window.

Recurrence Pattern	Schedule Description	Example	Example Selections
One time only	One time only.	June 20, 2007 at 4:00 P.M.	• One time only
Hourly	Every x number of hours.	Every five hours.	r Every 5 📩 hour(s)
	x number of hours after the last occur- rence.	Five hours after the last occurrence.	또 5 📩 hou(i) after last occurrence
Daily	Every x number of days.	Every two days.	Every 2 ≟ day(s) day(s)
	Every weekday.	Every week- day.	Every weekday
	x number of days after the last occur- rence.	Two days after the last occur- rence.	• 2 dig(c) after last occurrence
Weekly	Every x number of weeks on the x day of the week.	Every two weeks on Wed- nesday.	Faces III white Face Face Face Viewer Face Face face
	x number of weeks after the last occur- rence.	Two weeks after the last occurrence.	* 2 🖄 weak(s) after last occurrance
Monthly	Day x of every x month.	Day 15 of every one month.	≠De 3 atmay 1 ⊴ matté
	The x day of every x number of months, where you define the day of the week.	The first Friday of every two months.	a an an a grant a search is in many
	x number of months after the last occurrence.	One month after the last occurrence.	< যি প্র mot(i)ale lat scorms

Recurrence Pattern	Schedule Description	Example	Example Selections
Yearly	Every x day of every x number of years, where you define the month of the year.	Every April 15 of every one year.	r Sam (n= 2) (r = sam (r = sam)
	The x day of every x number of years, where you define the day of the week and the month of the year.	The third Fri- day of June, every three years.	
	x number of years after the last occur- rence.	Two years after the last occurrence.	ে 2 🤮 year() after fast occurrence

Note that in addition to indicating when an item is due, you can also use the **Range of Recurrence** section of the **Schedule** window to indicate:

- The date on which the schedule should become active. For example, if you configure an item to be due the first Monday of every week and the current day is Monday, you might want to wait a week before putting the schedule in place. To do so, you could select the date of the following Monday in the Start fields in the Range of Recurrence section.
- The date by which the schedule should end. For example, suppose you configure a pump inspection to be due every Friday. If you know that after Friday, December 29, 2007, the pump will be replaced, you might want to set an end date for the schedule. You can select the following options for a schedule end date:
 - No end date. The schedule does not have an end date.
 - End after x number of occurrences. The schedule ends after a specific number of occurrences.
 - End by x date. The schedule ends by a specific date.

About Applying a Sequence Value to Lubrication Requirement Records

Each Lubrication Requirement record contains a Sequence field, which should contain a numeric value representing the order in which the checkpoint should be performed.

We recommend that you sequence the Route by arranging Lubrication Requirement records in an order that corresponds to the proximity of the associated equipment or locations. For example, suppose you want to lubricate ten bearings in the facility, and the bearings are labeled according to the area in which they reside (Bearings A-1 through A-5 reside in Area A; Bearings B-1 through B-5 reside in Area B).

In this case, you would want to make sure the user does not waste time traveling between Area A and Area B multiple times. So, you would specify sequence values of 1 through 5 in the Lubrication Requirement records linked to Bearings A-1 through A-5, and you would specify sequence values of 6 through 10 in the Lubrication Requirement records linked to Bearings B-1 through B-5.

When you are <u>creating a Lubrication Requirement record</u>, if you know the order of that checkpoint relative to other checkpoints along the Route, you can type a numeric value specifying the order. For example, if you are creating a Lubrication Requirement record representing the first checkpoint that users should complete along the Route, you would type **1**.

If, on the other hand, you do not know the order of a checkpoint relative to other checkpoints along the Route (i.e., you have not finished creating the associated Lubrication Requirement records), you are not required to specify a value in the Sequence field when you create the record.

You can use the **Sequence Route** link on the **Associated Pages** menu to view all Lubrication Requirement records that are linked to the Route record. From the **Sequencing** page, you can <u>specify a sequence value in each Lubrication Requirement record while</u> viewing all Lubrication Requirement records that are linked to the Route record.
Applying a Sequence Value to Lubrication Requirement Records

To apply a sequence value to each Lubrication Requirement record that is linked to a Route record:

1. On the <u>Lubrication Management Route Management page</u>, open the Route record that is linked to the Lubrication Requirement records to which you want to apply a sequence value.

The Route record appears in the Record Manager.

2. On the Associated Pages menu, click the Sequence Route link.

The Sequencing page appears, displaying the linked Lubrication Management records in the order in which the records were created.

Meridium APM Framework	k - Sequencing					
<u>File E</u> dit <u>G</u> o To <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> e	elp					
😂 Back 👻 🛞 Forward 👻 🏠	My Start Page 👻	🀞 New 🔑 Search	n 🚞 Catalog 🔞 Qu	ery 👻 🛅 Report 🗸 I	🚹 Graph - (🨼 Dataset - 🌇 Dashboard -
meridium	Sequen	ce Definitio	'n			
Sequencing Drag a column header here to group by that column						
Tasks 😵	Order	Sequence	Related Asset Id	Description	Status	Checkpoint Type
🎓 Move Up	▶ 1				Active	Lubrication Requi
👃 Move Down	2	1	PMP-1001	General Check P	Active	Measurement Lo
Save Sequence	3	2	PMP-1001	General Check P	Active	Measurement Lo
🥑 Help	4	3	PMP-1001	Pump Check PMP	Active	Measurement Lo

3. Locate the row representing the first checkpoint along the Route, and in the **Order** column, type **1**.

The list is resorted, and the selected record appears at the top of the list.

4. For each checkpoint, in the **Order** column, continue typing a numeric value representing the order in which the checkpoints should be completed.

CE Hint: You can also use the **Move Up** and **Move Down** links on the **Tasks** menu to order the Lubrication Requirement records.

5. When you are finished sequencing the checkpoints along the Route, on the **Tasks** menu, click the **Save Sequence** link.

The Lubrication Requirement records are saved with the specified sequence values. Note that the Sequence field is the first field in the ID Template for the Lubrication Requirement family. This means that Lubrication Requirement records will be displayed in the **LM Explorer** pane and in Search results in ascending order according to their sequence value.

For example, if the following checkpoints are sequenced like this:

Axle Check Off = 03 Hinge Check Off = 02 Pump Check Off = 01 Refrigerator Change Out= 04

...they will be displayed in the LM Explorer pane as shown in the following image.



Note: When you see Lubrication Requirement records in the **Record Explorer** pane or Search results, records with a Sequence value of 1 through 9 will have a prepended 0 in the Record ID. For example, if you type 1, it will be reformatted as 01 in the Record ID.

About Reference Documents and Lubrication Requirements

A reference document is a file (e.g., a Word document) that contains supplementary information that users need to view while they are working. To associate a reference document with a Lubrication Requirement, you must:

- 1. Create a Reference Document record for the reference document.
- 2. Link the Reference Document record to the Lubrication Requirement record representing the checkpoint that is associated with the reference information.

You can <u>link new Reference Document records to Lubrication Requirement records</u> via the **LM Explorer** pane for the desired Lubrication Requirement record.

Linking New Reference Document Records to Lubrication Requirement Records

To create a Reference Document record that is linked to a Lubrication Requirement record:

1. On the <u>Lubrication Management Route Management page</u>, click the hyperlinked Route ID of the Route record that contains the Lubrication Requirement record with which you want to associate a reference document.

The Route record is displayed in the Record Manager.

2. In the **LM Explorer** pane, expand the Lubrication Requirement record node with which you want to associate reference data.

The Reading and Reference Document family nodes appear below the Lubrication Requirement record node.

3. Right-click the Reference Document family node, and on the shortcut menu, click **Create a new Reference Document record to link to <Lubrication Requirement record>**.

mp	ty> (new Reference Doc	ument)	X
<	empty> (new	Reference Document)	
Dat	asheet MI Reference Doc	ument 💌	
Def	fault		
	[Value(s)	
►	ID		
	Description		
	Document Path		
	Store Document?		
	Stored By		
	Last Updated Date		
		OK Cance	el

A new Reference Document record appears in a new window.

- 4. In the ID text box, type an ID for the reference document.
- 5. In the **Description** text box, type a description of the reference document.

6. In the **Document Path** text box, click the 🔤 button.

The **Reference Document Path** dialog box appears.

😡 Reference Document Path	—
Document Path:	
	OK Cancel

In the **Document Path** text box, you can type the path to the reference document, or you can click the ____ button to browse for the document. These instructions assume that you want to browse for the document.

7. Click the ... button, and select the desired file.

The **Document Path** text box is populated with the path to the selected file.

😡 Reference Document Path	×
Document Path:	
C:\MyData\Safety Warnings and Guidelines.docx	
ОК	Cancel

8. Click OK.

The **Document Path** text box is populated with a link to the document.

)at	tasheet MI Reference Do	ocument 💽 🔞 🚽 🔮 🗙 🗅 🍐 🕓 🖏
De	fault	
	[Value(s)
	ID	Safety Guidelines
▶	Description	Guidelines and warnings for Routes
	Document Path	C: \MyData\Safety Warnings and Guidelines.docx
	Store Document?	
	Stored By	
	Last Updated Date	

- 9. If you want to save a copy of the reference document to the Meridium APM database, accept the default setting for the **Store Document?** check box (i.e., *selected*).
- 10. Click **OK**.

The new Reference Document record is linked to the selected Lubrication Requirement record and is displayed on the **Reference Documents** tab.

Creating Lubrication Management Recommendation Records

To create a Lubrication Management Recommendation record:

1. On the Meridium APM Framework toolbar, click the **New** button.

The **Select Family** dialog box appears.

- 2. In the list, select Lubrication Management Recommendation.
- 3. Click OK.

The new Lubrication Management Recommendation record appears in the Record Manager.

 Record Manager 		
REC-6 (New Lubrication M	anagement Recommendation)	
Datasheet LM Recommendat		
General Information		
	Value(s)	
Recommendation ID	REC-6	
Recommendation Type	Lubrication Management (LUBRICATION MANAGEMENT)	
Recommendation Headlin	ne	
Recommendation Descrip	otion	
Recommendation Priority	/ =	
Recommendation Basis		
Asset ID		
Required Equipment Stal	tus	
Creation Date	17-Nov-2009	
Author Name	McClure, Lacy lacy	
Reviewer Name		
Assigned To Name		
Final Approver Name	v	

- 4. Complete the fields on the datasheet as desired.
- 5. On the Common Tasks menu, click the Save link.

The Lubrication Management Recommendation record is saved.

Accessing the Lubrication Management Reports Page

You can use the **Lubrication Management Reports** page to <u>open the reports</u> that are stored in the Catalog folder \\Public\Meridium\Modules\Lubrication Management\Reports and view them in the Report Viewer.

To access the Lubrication Management Reports page:

• On the Lubrication Management Start Page, click the Run Reports link.



The Lubrication Management Reports page appears.

Aspects of the Lubrication Management Reports Page

The **Lubrication Management Reports** page contains a grid that displays one row for each report that is stored in the Catalog folder \\Public\Meridium\Modules\Lubrication Management\Reports.

😵 Meridium APM Framework - Lubrication Management Reports 🕞 💷 📧				
<u>F</u> ile <u>E</u> dit <u>G</u> o To <u>T</u> ools	<u>H</u> elp			
👻 Back 🔹 🛞 Forward 👻 🏠 My Start Page 👻 🏂 New 🎤 Search 🗯 Catalog 🔞 Query 🛛 🛅 Report 🕶 🕼 Graph 🛛 🧐 Dataset 🖛 Dashboard 🕶				
meridium	Reports			
Lubrication	Caption	Description		
Management	Lubrication Management Data Capture	Provides a Detailed Report of Lubrication Requirements for the selected Ro		
Common Tasks 🛛 😵	Overdue Lubrication Requirements	Provides Detailed Report of Overdue Lubrication Requirements		
=_? Send To >>	Overdue Lubrication Requirements-Oracle	Provides Detailed Report of Overdue Lubrication Requirements-Oracle		
(2) Неір				
		v		
	Record 1 of 3	▶		

The grid contains the following columns:

- **Caption:** Displays the hyperlinked report caption, which you can click to <u>open the</u> <u>report</u>.
- **Description:** Displays the report description.

The Lubrication Management Reports page contains one task menu, Common Tasks.

Common Tasks Menu



The **Common Tasks** menu on the **Lubrication Management Reports** page contains the following links:

- Send To: Displays a submenu with options that let you send a link to the current page to your desktop (create shortcut), in an email message, or a Home Page.
- Help: Displays the context-sensitive Help topic for the Lubrication Management Reports page.

Opening Reports from the Lubrication Management Report Page

To open a report from the Lubrication Management Reports page:

• In the grid on the Lubrication Management Report page, click the hyperlinked caption of the report that you want view.

Note: If the report is based on a query that contains prompts, the **Enter Query Parameters** dialog box will appear. After you select the desired values, click **OK** to view the report.

The selected report appears on the Report Viewer page, where you can view the report and perform various tasks related to the report. If you want, you can print the report for users to reference when completing a checkpoint.

About the Lubrication Management Folder Structure

The Catalog folder \\Public\Meridium\Modules\Lubrication Management contains the following subfolders that contain items that are used by Lubrication Management:

- Explorers
- Queries
- Reports

The information in this section of the documentation is intended to serve as a quick reference to details that are provided elsewhere in the specific Lubrication Management instructions.

Note: All of the Public folders exist by default. Any baseline item in the Baseline folder is also available in the corresponding Public folder. Throughout this documentation, however, we refer to items in the Public folder.

Explorers Folder

The following table lists the configured explorer that is stored in the Catalog location \\Public\Meridium\Modules\Lubrication Management\Explorers. The configured explorer name is listed in the table. The configured explorer name and caption are the same.

Configured Explorer	Behavior and Usage
<u>LM Explorer</u>	You can use the LM Explorer to create or open Route records instead of the standard Record Explorer pane. The difference between the LM Explorer pane and the Record Explorer pane is that the LM Explorer pane displays only Route, Lubrication Require- ment, Reading, and Reference Document records. Since Lubric- ation Requirement records are linked to Equipment or Functional Location records, the standard Record Explorer pane will display those Equipment or Functional Location records. The LM Explorer pane, however, will not display these Equipment or Functional Location records or any other records that are linked to the records listed above.

Queries Folder

The Catalog location \\Public\Meridium\Modules\Lubrication Management\Queries contains the Report Queries folder. The following table lists the queries that are stored in the Report Queries folder. The reports are listed by name in the table. The query name and caption are the same unless otherwise noted.

Query	Behavior and Usage	
Lubrication Management Data Capture	Displays a prompt asking you to select a Route record, and then returns all Lubrication Requirement records that are linked to the specified Route record.	
Overdue Lubrication Requirements	Displays a prompt asking you to select a Route record, and then returns all overdue Lubrication Requirement records that are linked to that Route record. Each row in the results represents a Lubrication Requirement record whose Schedule value indicates that the checkpoint is overdue for maintenance.	
Overdue Lubrication Requirements- Oracle	Displays the same results as the Overdue Lubrication Require- ments query. This query, however, works on an Oracle schema only.	

Reports Folder

The following table lists the reports that are stored in the Catalog location \\Public\Meridium\Modules\Lubrication Requirement\Reports. The reports are listed by name in the table. The report name and caption are the same unless otherwise noted.

Report	Behavior and Usage
Lubrication Requirement Data Capture	Displays a prompt asking for a Route record, and then displays a formatted version of the results from the Lubrication Requirement Data Capture query for the selected Route record. You can print this report and record reading values at the associated checkpoint. A link to this report appears on the <u>Lubrication Management Reportspage</u> .
Overdue Lubrication Requirements	Displays a prompt asking for a Route record, and then displays a formatted version of the results from the Overdue Lubrication Requirements query for the selected Route record. A link to this report appears on the Lubrication Management Reportspage.
Overdue Lubrication Requirements- Oracle	Displays the same results as the Overdue Measurement Loca- tions report. This report, however, works on an Oracle schema only.

Lubrication Requirement

Lubrication Requirement records store details about the checkpoints for a Route. The following table provides an alphabetical list and description of the fields that exist for the Lubrication Requirement family and that are available on the **Identification** tab of the Lubrication Requirement datasheet. The information in the table reflects the baseline state and behavior of these fields. This list is not comprehensive.

Field Data Type	Description	Behavior and Usage
ATG Logical	This field is used by the Meridium APM system.	This field does not appear on any datasheet by default. The value is set automatically by the Meridium APM system.
Asset Descrip- ion	A description of the Equipment or Func- tional Location record to which you want to link the Lubrication Require- ment record.	 On the datasheet, this field appears as a text box labeled Asset Description. If you entered in the Asset ID field a value that is stored in the database, after you save the Lubrication Requirement record, the Asset Description cell will be populated automatically with the value in the Asset Description field of the associated record (as long as the field ID of the Asset Description field for that entity family is exactly ASSET_DESC_CHR). If you do not want Meridium APM to populate the field automatically, you can enter a description for the equipment or location to which you want to link the Lubrication Requirement record directly in the Asset Description cell. You are not required to type the description exactly as it is stored in the database.

Field	Data Type	Description	Behavior and Usage
Capacity	Number	A number rep- resenting the amount of lubricant that the component will hold.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a text box labeled Capacity in which you can enter the desired value.
Capacity Unit of Measure	Character	A value representing the UOM associated with the value in the Capacity field.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a text box. You can enter a value directly in the Capacity Unit of Measure cell.
Component	Character	The part of the equip- ment that requires lubrication (e.g., axle or bearing).	On the datasheet, this field appears as a text box. You can enter a value directly in the Component cell.
Last Date	Date	The date on which the last reading was recorded for this checkpoint.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a text box labeled Last Date and is populated automatically based on the defined schedule and the cur- rent date.
Lubricant	Character	The lubricant that is required for this checkpoint.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a list labeled Lubricant and is populated with the values stored in the Lubricant field in the existing Lubricant records. In addi- tion, this list is filtered by the value that you select in the Lubricant Manufacturer list. You can select a value in the list

Field	Data Type	Description	Behavior and Usage
Lubricant Manufacturer	Character	The company that manufactures the lubricant that users should use when completing this checkpoint.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a list labeled Lubricant Manufacturer and is populated with the values stored in the Lubricant Man- ufacturer field in the existing Lubricant records. In addi- tion, this list is filtered by the value that you select in the Method list. You can select a value in the list.
LR Type	Character	The type of data that users can enter when creating a Reading record linked to the Lubrication Require- ment record.	On the datasheet, this field appears as list labeled LR Type and contains the fol- lowing values: • Check Off • Change Out • Tracking You can select a value from the list. This field is required.
Method	Character	The method that users should use when applying a lub- ricant at this check- point.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a list labeled Method and is populated with the values stored in the Method field in the existing Lubricant records. You can select a value from the list.
Next Date	Date	The date on which the next reading is due for this check- point.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a text box labeled Next Date and is populated automatically based on the values stored in the Schedule and Last Date fields.

Field	Data Type	Description	Behavior and Usage
Number of Points	Number	The number of points on the com- ponent that requires lubrication.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a text box labeled Number of Points in which you can enter the desired number of points. For example, if you typed axle in the Component cell, you might type 2 in the Number of Points cell.
Priority	Character	A value representing the priority asso- ciated with the lub- rication requirement.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a text box. You can enter a value directly in the Priority cell.
Related Asset ID	Character	The ID of the Equip- ment or Functional Location record to which you want to link the Lubrication Requirement record.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a text box labeled Asset ID . You can enter an ID directly in this cell. If the Equipment or Functional Location family has been con- figured as specified in the Configuration Manager and you type a valid ID, after you save the Lubrication Require- ment record, the Lubrication Requirement record will be linked to the record identified by the ID that you typed. You must type the ID exactly as it is stored in the database.
Schedule	Character	The schedule by which you want to complete this check- point.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a text box labeled Schedule and contains a ••• button, which you can click to view the Schedule window where you can <u>define the</u> <u>desired schedule</u> .

Field	Data Type	Description	Behavior and Usage
Sequence	Number	A number indicating the <u>order in which</u> <u>the checkpoint</u> <u>should be completed</u> relative to other checkpoints along the same Route.	On the datasheet, this field is disabled and populated auto- matically.
Status	Character	The status of the Lubrication Require- ment record. By default, this field con- tains the value <i>Active</i> .	On the datasheet, this field appears as a list labeled Status and contains the fol- lowing values: • Active • Inactive You can select a value in the list.
Template	Character	The ID of the Lubric- ation Requirement Template record that you want to use to populate fields in the Lubrication Require- ment record.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a list labeled Tem- plate and contains the values stored in the Template ID fields in the Lubrication Requirement Template records that exist in the data- base. You can select a value from the list. When you do so, the remaining fields will be populated automatically with the values in the <u>cor-</u> <u>responding Lubrication</u> <u>Requirement Template</u> <u>record</u> . Note that if you later remove the selection from the Tem- plate list, the fields that were populated automatically will remain populated.

Field	Data Type	Description	Behavior and Usage
Unit of Meas- ure	Character	The unit of measure that users can spe- cify when entering a reading value for this checkpoint.	On the datasheet, this field appears as a list labeled Unit of Measure . You can select a value from the list. This field is disabled if the LR Type field contains the value <i>Check Off</i> .

Lubrication Requirement Template

Lubrication Requirement Template records can be used to create Lubrication Requirement records and contain all <u>the fields included in Lubrication Requirement records</u>, with the exception of the Template field in the Lubrication Requirement record. In addition, Lubrication Requirement Template records include the additional field *Template ID*, which stores the ID for the template. This value appears in the Template field in the Lubrication Requirement record.

System Code Tables Used by Lubrication Management

The following System Code Tables are used by Lubrication Management.

Table ID	Table Description	Function
MI_FDC_STATUS_TYPE	Status types for Check- point families	Unknown
MI_RECOMMENDATION_ TYPE	CORE, Recommendation Type	Used to populate the Recommendation Type list in Recommendation records.
		Note that the Recom- mendation Type field is not included on the baseline LM Recom- mendation datasheet.
MI_LM_LUBR_REQ_TYPE	Types of Lubrication Requirement	Used to populate the LR Type list on the Lubric- ation Requirement record.
MI_LM_REFERENCES	List of references for Lubrication Management	Used to populate the Unit of Measure list in Lubric- ation Requirement records.

Lubrication Management URLs

The following table lists and describes the paths for accessing features in Lubrication Management. Note that to construct a valid URL, you must prepend **meridium://** to the path.

Note: Lubrication Management URLs do not accept any parameters.

Feature	Path	Description
Lubrication Man- agement Start Page	LM	Displays the Lubrication Man- agement Start Page.
Lubrication Man- agement Route Man- agement	LM/RouteManagement	Displays the Lubrication Man- agement Route Man- agement page.
Lubrication Man- agement Template Management	LM/TemplateManagement	Displays the Lubrication Man- agement Template Man- agement page.
Lubrication Man- agement Reports	LM/Reports	Displays the Lubrication Man- agement Reports page.
Lubrication Man- agement Recent Routes	LM/RecentRoute	Displays the Lubrication Man- agement Recently Modified Routes page.
Lubrication Man- agement Manage Lubricants	LM/ManageLubricants	Displays the Lubrication Man- agement Manage Lubricants page.